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 � Business-supporting Facilities
G60 International Electronic Information 
Innovation Park
Industry Positioning: Electronic Information, 
bonded logistics, trade headquarters
Songjiang Biopharmaceutical Industry 
Base
Industry Positioning: Biopharmaceuticals
CHINT-Tusincere Smart Electrical Park
Industry Positioning: New energy, 
intelligent manufacturing, new-generation 
information technology
TUS-Cao He Jing (Zhongshan) Science 
Park
Industry Positioning: Intelligent man-
ufacturing, analytical detection, medical 
equipment, energy conservation and en-
vironmental protection
Tian An Golden Valley Sci. & Tech. Park
Industry Positioning: Life science, new 
energy, new materials

 � Overview
Qingpu District, situated in the west of Shanghai and covering an area of 
668.5 km2, is one of the districts with the best natural ecology in the city. 
Renowned as “a glorious pearl in the upper reaches of the Huangpu River”, 
Qingpu is the only administrative district in Shanghai that borders both 
Jiangsu and Zhejiang Provinces.
Qingpu District is stepping up efforts to develop into a demonstration 
zone for the integrated development of the YRD region and Shanghai’s 
gateway to the world.

 � Investment Highlights

Convention 
and 

exhibition Commerce 
and trade

Transporta-
tion, logistics, 
warehousing 

and postal 
services

Software and 
information 

services

 � Policy Support

 � Business-supporting Facilities
Qingpu Industrial Zone
Industry Positioning: High-end intelligent 
manufacturing, biopharmaceuticals, new 
materials, software and information, print 
media, fast moving consumer goods 
production
West Hongqiao Business District
Industry Positioning: Exhibition and 
conference services, circulation services, 
headquarters economy, modern financial 
services, creativity industry, strategic 
emerging industries
Zhaoxiang Commercial and Business Zone 
Industry Positioning: A pioneering area 
for exploring new retail modes, a new 
international business district, a core 
functional area for building the “Shanghai 
Shopping” brand, sci-tech innovation, 
cultural creativity

Regional Focus: Qingpu New Town

 � Development Goals
To become a major contributor to the integrat-
ed development of the YRD region and the stra-
tegic goal of the CIIE, and an ecologically-sound 
and livable community that leads a green, 
innovation-driven development and inherits 
traditional culture south of the Yangtze River.

 � Industry Positioning
• Strengthening and expanding distinctive 

industries including modern logistics, conven-
tion and exhibition, and commerce and trade, 
with a focus on digital economy led by infor-
mation technology.

• Functioning as a demonstration zone for inte-
grated ecological and green development of 
the YRD and a major carrier of China’s national 
strategy behind the CIIE by tapping into the 
advantageous ecological environment around 
the Dianshan Lake; accelerating the integra-
tion and application of a new generation of in-
formation technology driven by the innovation 
momentum and the extended industry chain 
in the Hongqiao Central Business District, Xicen 
Sci-Tech Innovation Center and Shixi Software 
Information Park.

• Developing multi-level smart application 
scenarios in different industries and driving 
development by capitalizing on national 
strategic and ecological advantages.
 � Key Directions

Digital economy, modern logistics, convention 
and exhibition, commerce and trade

Regional Focus: Songjiang   
 New Town

 � Development Goals
To build a globally influential G60 Sci-Tech 
Innovation Corridor, a hub of excellence 
and openness in Songjiang District, and an 
ecologically-sound, livable modern town 
favorable for sci-tech innovation and cultural 
development serving the YRD region.

 � Industry Positioning
• Capitalizing on the G60 Sci-Tech Innovation 

Corridor to create an internationally influen-
tial advanced manufacturing cluster with a 
focus on an industry landscape of “6+X” that 
involves strategic emerging industries in-
cluding AI, IC, biopharmaceuticals, intelligent 
security, new energy and new materials.

• Developing a distinctive layout of seven 
functional areas integrating city and industry 
in accordance with the requirements of the 
G60 Sci-Tech Innovation Corridor scheme.
 � Key Direction

Focusing on four RMB 100 billion-worth 
industries of new-generation electronic 
information, new materials, new energy 
vehicles and biopharmaceuticals, and RMB 
10 billion-worth ones such as IC, modern 
equipment and AI.

Qingpu District – Qingpu New Town

Financial Support for Newly Established Foreign-invested Companies or 
Those with Increased Investment
Newly established foreign-invested companies specializing in advanced 
manufacturing and modern service industries, or existing ones with 
investment capital increase, are entitled to grants of RMB 50,000–5 
million based on the amount of registered capital, provided that the 
subscribed registered capital reaches USD 1 million.

1

Operation Rewards for Head Offices of MNCs 
Institutions of MNCs that serve as headquarters and whose annual 
turnover has reached a certain scale since the year when they were 
certified as RHQs are eligible for an accumulative reward of RMB 10 
million; certified trade-based headquarters are eligible for a reward up 
to RMB 5 million as per the year-on-year increase of their revenue.

2

Rewards for Technical Centers
Qualified technical centers are eligible for a reward of up to RMB 150,000.

3
Incentive Policies for Attracting Talent
Qualified high-caliber professionals, innovators or entrepreneurial 
talent are eligible for a housing allowance of RMB 5 million, 3 million or 
1 million according to their titles. Other supporting services regarding 
healthcare and children education will be provided accordingly.

4

Dedicated Subsidies for CIIE-related Organizations
Chinese and international non-profit trade organizations or institutions, 
commercial enterprises, members of the four trade alliances (i.e., large 
purchasers, comprehensive trade service providers, cross-border 
e-commerce and exhibition platform enterprises) and functional 
service platforms for the CIIE are entitled to start-up subsidies, rental 
subsidies and operation subsidies.

5

 � Overview
Located on the upper Huangpu River and spanning an area of 604.67 km2, 
Songjiang District is an important gateway to Shanghai in the southwest.
Songjiang District has taken the lead in proposing the establishment of the G60 
Sci-Tech Innovation Corridor. As the Corridor was elevated from a city-level 
strategy to be a part of the YRD region’s integrated development guidelines, it 
will become a model corridor where sci-tech innovation drives “Made in China” 
towards “Created in China” with quality development.

 � Investment Highlights

Songjiang District – Songjiang 
New Town

Major 
Sectors

• 3D printing
• Intelligent 

manufacturing
• Robotics

Emerging 
Industries

• Modern logistics
• R&D and design
• Professional services
• Creative and fashion 

industries

Key 
Industry

• Advanced 
manufacturing

Competitive 
Industries

• Electronic information
• Modern equipment
• Biopharmaceuticals
• Traditional industries

 � Policy Support

Attracting Advanced Manufacturing Enterprises
Newly introduced key advanced manufacturing enterprises that rent or 
purchase production and office buildings for their own use in Songjiang are 
eligible for a rental subsidy of up to RMB 5 million for a stipulated period, and 
an estate purchase allowance of up to RMB 10 million.
Qualified enterprises are eligible for a subsidy equivalent to 10% of their total 
investment in industrial fixed assets, capped at RMB 50 million for a single project.

1

Supporting Technology Transformation and Upgrading
Recognized key technology transformation and upgrading projects are eligible 
for a one-off subsidy of no more than 10% of their total investment in fixed 
assets, capped at RMB 30 million for a single project.

2

Driving the Headquarters Economy
Newly introduced corporate headquarters are eligible for a subsidy for 
establishment of up to RMB 10 million. Those that have been upgraded to RHQs 
of MNCs in Shanghai are eligible for a lump sum subsidy of up to RMB 5 million.

3

Encouraging the Establishment of Foreign-invested R&D Centers
Foreign-funded R&D institutions certified by the Municipal Commission of 
Commerce are eligible for a one-time subsidy for establishment of up to RMB 3 
million. In addition, a rental subsidy of up to RMB 3 million and an estate purchase 
allowance of up to RMB 5 million are also available to foreign-invested R&D 
centers that rent or purchase office buildings for their own use in Songjiang.

4

Stimulating Foreign Investment
Qualified newly-introduced foreign investment projects and those that expand 
investment capital are eligible for a subsidy of 3% of the paid-in capital, capped 
at RMB 5 million.

5

Promoting the Agglomeration of Modern Services
Newly introduced leading enterprises in high-tech services, professional 
services and cultural creativity that rent or purchase office buildings for their 
own use in Songjiang are eligible for a rental subsidy of up to RMB 3 million for 
a stipulated period, and an estate purchase allowance of up to RMB 5 million.

6
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Booming Growth of New Towns

 � Business-supporting Facilities
Shanghai Comprehensive Industrial Devel-
opment Zone
Industry Positioning: A modern industry 
system featuring a “1+1+X” pattern which 
centers on the beauty & health industries, 
renewable energy and new materials, and 
advanced manufacturing industries
Shanghai Hangzhou Bay Economic and 
Technological Development Zone
Industry Positioning: Biopharmaceuticals, 
beauty and health industries, and chemical-
related industries including fine chemicals, 
new materials, chemical trade and chemical 
logistics
Oriental Beauty Valley Biotechnology Park
Industry Positioning: A hub for beauty and 
health industries
Shanghai Lingang Fengxian Park
Industry Positioning: Life science, NEVs 
& intelligent connected vehicles and core 
auto parts, high-end intelligent equipment

 � Business-supporting Facilities
Shanghai Industrial Park of Robotics
Industry Positioning: AI and intelligent 
manufacturing, new generation informa-
tion technology
Shanghai Super Science and Innovation 
Park (New Material)
Industry Positioning: Advanced materials, 
AI and smart devices, biopharmaceuticals
North Shanghai Biopharmaceuticals 
Industrial Park
Industry Positioning: High-end biophar-
maceutical manufacturing, production of 
advanced medical equipment, modern 
logistics for high-end biopharmaceuticals
Shanghai Lingang Xinyefang Baoshan 
Chenggong Technology Oasis
Industry Positioning: Biopharmaceuticals, 
Industrial Internet of Things (IIoT), new 
materials, IoT

 � Overview
Located in the south of Shanghai, Fengxian District is an important gateway 
to the west of the Lin-gang Special Area of SHFTZ, a center in southern 
Shanghai and a dynamic new town in the YRD region. The District enjoys 
dividends of a free trade zone as approx. 439 km2 of its land was designated 
to be part of the Lin-gang Special Area in August 2019.
Fengxian District enjoys the highest concentration of cosmetics enterprises in 
Shanghai, and is the only cosmetics industry hub in China. The Oriental Beauty 
Valley International Cosmetics Conference, held annually in Fengxian, has emerged 
in recent years as a major event in the global cosmetics and beauty industry.

 � Investment Highlights

Regional Focus: Fengxian New  
 Town

 � Development Goals
To become a node area with distinctive industry 
features and unique ecological resources on 
the riverside and coastal development corridor 
in southern Shanghai.

 � Industry Positioning
• Prioritizing beauty and health industries, 

promoting distinctive industries such as 
traditional Chinese medicine, and nurturing 
intelligent connected vehicle industries.

• Centered on the Oriental Beauty Valley, fo-
cused efforts will be made to boost the beau-
ty and health industries, including developing 
a comprehensive industry ecosystem and 
enhancing brand presence for a synergistic 
development with the Zhangjiang Pharma Val-
ley, so that more major projects in Shanghai’s 
beauty and health industries can be intro-
duced. With such efforts, Fengxian New Town 
aims to accelerate the building of an impor-
tant incubator and an innovation platform for 
the beauty and health industries in Shanghai, 
making the District a dynamic sci-tech inno-
vation zone for small and medium-sized en-
terprises and a beautiful land featuring strong 
industry capacity, quality living conditions and 
a sound ecological environment.
 � Key Directions

Beauty and health, traditional Chinese medi-
cine, intelligent connected vehicles

Strategic Emerging 
Industries

Economies driven by 
new technologies, new 

industries, new forms and 
new models of business, 
and high-tech industries

Beauty and 
Health Industries
Biopharmaceuticals, 
cosmetics, food and 

pet industries

The 
Oriental 
Beauty 
Valley

Intelligent 
Connected NEVs

5G communications, 
AI, IoT

Future 
Space

Fengxian District – Fengxian New 
Town

Accelerating the Development of Beauty and Health Industries
Encouraging MNCs in the beauty and health spheres to set up RHQs in 
the Oriental Beauty Valley.

1 Supporting Headquarters Economy
Newly attracted or identified company headquarters (RHQs of MNCs, 
headquarters of large Chinese companies, headquarters of private enterprises, 
RHQs, R&D and design centers, settlement centers, operation centers etc.) are 
entitled to a subsidy for establishment of up to RMB 10 million.

1

Accelerating the Development of “a Park within a Park” 
Raising the plot ratio, postponing fees for land plot ratio increases, and 
prioritizing the land application by major manufacturers in land using.

2
Supporting the Introduction of Strategic Emerging Industry Projects
Supporting the introduction of new strategic emerging industry projects 
which drive and lead the expansion of related industries. Such projects are 
eligible for a subsidy of up to RMB 100 million.

2
Driving Techfin and Real Economy
Enterprises which are registered in Fengxian and whose tax collection is 
administrated by the authorities of the District are eligible for a reward 
of up to RMB 6 million when they successfully go public on domestic and 
overseas major capital markets.

3
Encouraging Corporations to Innovate in Science and Technology
Projects which introduce or cultivate Chinese and foreign R&D institutions 
specializing in developing cutting-edge science and technology, functional 
headquarters, key laboratories and innovation platforms are qualified for a 
subsidy of up to RMB 40 million at municipal and district levels.

3

Setting up an RMB 2 Billion Guiding Fund for Industry Development in 
Fengxian
Investing in quality industries with great potential and sustainable 
performance in the beauty & health and new energy sectors.

4
Supporting Digital Transformation and Upgrading of Enterprises
Projects listed as municipal demonstration application projects are entitled 
to a subsidy of up to RMB 30 million.

4
Expediting the Gathering of Cultural and Creative Industries
Renowned cultural and creative brands from China and abroad settling 
in Fengxian are entitled to grants at 5-10% of their actual investment in 
fixed assets, up to RMB 3 million.

5
Financial Support for the Leasing and Purchasing of Housing
New companies in the advanced manufacturing and high-end service 
industries are eligible for a rent allowance of up to RMB 5 million, and a 
subsidy of up to RMB 10 million to purchase production and office buildings 
for their own use.

5

Implementing a Tiered Talent Acquisition Mechanism
Providing all-rounded case-by-case support for different types of 
talented personnel in terms of housing and renting, schooling of children 
and medical care.

6
Accelerating the Introduction of High-Caliber Talented Professionals
Select talented professionals are qualified for a subsidy of up to RMB 2 
million for housing.

6

 � Overview
As the gateway in the northern part of Shanghai with an area of 302 km2, 
Baoshan District is the closest urban region to downtown Shanghai and an 
important node city for the integrated development of the YRD region.
Baoshan is focused on establishing itself as the major forefront of sci-tech 
innovation in Shanghai. With abundant university resources, vast industry space, 
numerous application scenarios and plentiful supporting resources, Baoshan 
is making every effort to transform into a modern and innovation-driven urban 
district with a pleasant ecological environment.

 � Investment Highlights

Transformation of Baoshan 
and Jinshan Districts

Baoshan District

New-
generation 
information 
technology

Cruise
economy

Biopharma-
ceuticals

Advance 
materials

Robots and 
intelligent 

manufacturing

Key 
Functional 

Zone

Function/Industry 
Positioning

Southern 
Zone

Concentrating on develop-
ing the “Five Types of Econ-
omy”, strategic emerging 
industries including techfin, 
AI, advanced materials and 
Internet+, as well as high-
end producer services

Northern 
Zone

Focused on nurturing the 
digital economy, new mate-
rials and new hardware in-
dustries to support various 
functions of the sub-center 
in northern Shanghai

 � Policy Support
 � Policy Support

Four New 
Focuses
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Transformation of Baoshan and Jinshan Districts

 � Business-supporting Facilities
Office Buildings
Key Buildings: Binhai Residence, Guang-
ming Dulehui Office Building, Wanda 
SOHO, Hengyue Office Building, Shanxin 
City Plaza Business Center, New Jinshan 
Plaza, Yibin Building
Shanghai Jinshan Industrial Zone
Industry Positioning: Biopharmaceuticals, 
high-end intelligent equipment, new 
materials, new displays, cultural and creative 
industries
Shanghai Jinshan Second Industrial Zone
Industry Positioning: Biopharmaceuticals, 
new materials, energy conservation & en-
vironmental protection, related producer 
services
Fengjing Industrial Zone
Industry Positioning: New energy vehicles 
and key spare parts, high-end intelligent 
equipment, life science and healthcare, pro-
ducer services
Zhujing Industrial Zone
Industry Positioning: Precision instru-
ments, energy conservation & environmen-
tal protection, life science and healthcare, 
automobile equipment and parts

 � Business-supporting Facilities
Chongming Industrial Park
Industry Positioning: Auto parts, headquarters 
economy, cultural creativity
Chongming Modern Agriculture Park
Industry Positioning: Agricultural park empowered 
by science and technology
Shanghai Changxing Marine Equipment Industry 
Park
Function Positioning: An international highland 
of marine industry, an international playground 
for innovative enterprises
Shanghai Wisdom Island Data Industry Park
Function Positioning: A cluster of the data industry
Shanghai Fusheng Economic Development Zone
Function Positioning: A key area for advanced 
manufacturing

“2+3+N” Modern Ecological Industry System

2 3 N

 � Overview
Jinshan District spans an area of 613.4 km2 and is the gateway located in the 
southwest of Shanghai. It neighbors the Lin-gang Special Area of SHFTZ in the 
east, borders the southern part of China’s coastal economic belt, abuts the 
northern coastal development area of Hangzhou Bay in the west, and adjoins 
downtown Shanghai, the demonstration zone for integrated ecological and 
green development in the YRD as well as Hongqiao Economic and Technological 
Development Zone in the north. The District is the bridgehead of Shanghai to 
influence and facilitate the development of others areas in the YRD region.
As an important node city at Hangzhou Bay, Jinshan District is about one 
hour’s drive from 16 major cities of the YRD region. It is one of the districts 
with the largest area of newly approved construction land in Shanghai.

 � Investment Highlights

Jinshan District

Pillar 
Industries

• New materials
• Life science and 

healthcare
• Smart devices
• Information technology

Flourishing 
Industry

• Eco-friendly chemical 
industry

Distinctive 
Industries

• Biopharmaceuticals
• Carbon fiber composite 

materials
• Unmanned aerial vehicles
• New displays

• Urban modern 
green agriculture

• Marine equipment

• High-quality tourism
• Distinctive sports
• Health services

• New industries and 
business structures 
such as the digital 
economy, modern 
flower and traditional 
Chinese medicine

Emerging 
Industries

• Digital services
• Professional services
• Integrated services
• Headquarters 

economy

Supporting the Biopharmaceutical Industry
The R&D and innovation of new medicines are supported. Innovative 
medicines included into major national or municipal sci-tech projects are 
entitled to a subsidy of up to RMB 10 million. Outstanding enterprises which 
obtain medicine registration approval documents or conduct clinical trials 
are eligible for a subsidy of RMB 500,000 to 2 million.

1

Supporting the New Display Industry
Research institutes specializing in new displays are eligible for a subsidy 
equivalent to 20% of their investment, capped at RMB 10 million. The 
vertical integration and upgrading of industry chains in the new display 
industry are supported. A subsidy of up to RMB 3 million are provided for 
projects which connect upstream and downstream industry components.

2

Supporting the Unmanned Aerial Vehicle Industry
Airworthiness assessment institutes are eligible for a subsidy of up to 
RMB 10 million for property purchase and construction as well as a rental 
subsidy of up to RMB 1.2 million per year for five years.

3

Supporting the Carbon Fiber Composite Industry
Carbon fiber composite projects that have achieved breakthroughs in 
key areas of production equipment, process or technology are entitled to 
a subsidy equivalent to 5%–10% of actual investment, capped at RMB 3 
million, upon recognition.

4

Supporting Foreign-invested Headquarters Economy
A subsidy of up to RMB 5 million is available to new foreign-invested R&D centers 
or new RHQs of MNCs that are set up in the form of holding companies.

5

 � Policy Support

Key Functional 
Zone

Function/Industry 
Positioning

The Costal Area
The political, economic 
and cultural center of 
Jinshan District

The Urbanization 
Development 

Axis of Tinglin and 
Fengjing Town

High-quality integrated 
development demon-
stration zone for adja-
cent areas

The Industry 
Development 
Axis of Tinglin 

and Jinshanwei 
Town

Promoting deep inte-
gration of the advanced 
manufacturing and 
modern services indus-
tries to make the axis a 
major growth driver for 
Jinshan

The Central 
Ecosphere 

of Rural 
Development

Boosting integrated ex-
pansion of the primary, 
secondary and tertiary 
industries, and building 
large gardens, orchards 
and vegetable farming 
areas

Key Functional 
Zone Function Positioning

Chengqiao Town

An ecological gateway of Shang-
hai to serve and influence 
the northern wing of the YRD 
region. A core ecological and 
waterborne town of the world-
class eco-island.

Dongtan–Chenjia 
Town Area

Three leading functions of ecolog-
ical conservation, sci-tech innova-
tion and leisure & sports

Changxing and 
Hengsha Area

Changxing Town is dedicated 
to building itself into a marine 
equipment island and pro-
moting industry leading new 
urbanization. Hengsha Town is 
committed to constructing itself 
into a world-class pilot eco-is-
land demonstration zone

Dongping 
(Flower Expo 

Park) Area

Introducing a number of eco-
friendly demonstration projects 
which have high added value 
and strong driving power

 � Overview
Chongming District is located on the western coast of the Pacific Ocean 
with an area of 1,413 km2. It is the midpoint of China’s coastline and the 
estuary of the Yangtze River to the sea.
Chongming District is situated at the intersection of the Yangtze River 
Economic Belt and the coastal corridor. It boasts convenient land and 
water transportation and is close to SHFTZ which greatly influences and 
fosters development of the entire region. Chongming is committed to 
becoming a world-class eco-island and a global example in ecological 
environment development, resource utilization, social-economic 
development and quality of life. 

 � Investment Highlights

World-Class Eco-Island
Chongming District

Encouraging Enterprises Investment and Talents Attraction
Providing entrepreneurs and start-ups with preferential and low-cost 
office spaces as well as entrepreneurship mentoring, financial, legal and 
human resource services for free.

1

Encouraging the Development of Start-ups
A one-off grant of RMB 150,000 will be given to district-level 
high-tech business incubators and maker-spaces, along with a 
founding subsidy of up to RMB 350,000 granted after one year of 
business operation.

2

Supporting District-level High-tech Businesses
Providing district-level high-tech business incubators and maker-
spaces with office space rental subsidy at RMB 1/m2/day for a floor 
area of up to 500 m2.

3

Financial Incentives for Innovation and Startup Teams
An entrepreneurship coaching incentive of RMB 50,000 will be 
given to the operating bodies of tech incubators or maker-spaces 
if projects from such incubators and maker-spaces receive a one-
off funding of RMB 2 million or more.

4

 � Policy Support
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World-Class Eco-Island

Shanghai is continuously improving its business environment to provide strong guarantee for further high-quality development. In 
2020, the city released version 3.0 of its business environment reform plan based on a “1+2+X” pattern to create a better business 
environment.

In April 2020, Shanghai issued the Regulations of Shanghai Municipality on Optimizing Doing Business Environment. This document 
is aimed to constantly improve the business environment, stimulate market entity dynamics, safeguard the legitimate rights 
and interests of market entities, facilitate high-quality economic growth as well as further modernize government governance 
systems and capacities.

Implementing Multi-dimensional Reforms to Improve the Business Environment

Government Online-Offline Shanghai 
Portal
To offer one-stop services with streamlined 
procedures, Shanghai has integrated a 
wide range of public services into the Gov-
ernment Online-Offline Portal, which ac-
curately pushes enquiries to the required 
departments and therefore, meet service 
needs more efficiently and effectively.

Progresses are being made in both the assessments by World Bank and national competent authorities
Drawing on advanced government service concepts and experience of other regions at home and abroad, 
Shanghai has deepened the integration of cross-department procedures for offering public services, and minimized 
the administrative procedures and time needed for handling enterprise-related matters. This has made it more 
convenient for companies to have access to government services.

1+2+X

1

2

X

A package of policies and measures 
are provided to protect, stimulate and 
strengthen the vitality of market entities
An institutionalized platform for govern-
ment-enterprise communication has been 
established to unblock the channels required 
for corporations to report requests and pro-
tect rights and interests. A sound mechanism 
that allows entrepreneurs to participate in 
drafting enterprise-related policies has also 
been put in place.

Chapter IV
Professional 

Investment Services

First-class Business Environment

Business 
Incorporation

Cross-border 
Trade

• Just one application 
form on the one-stop 
service system for 
business incorpora-
tion

• Corporate stamps 
free of charge

• Business address 
and name registra-
tion notification and 
commitment system

• Single window for 
cross-border payment 
and settlement.

• Implementation of 
the “two-step dec-
laration”, shipside 
pickup of imports 
and shipside loading 
of exports

Electricity Access

• Approval proce-
dures for low-volt-
age micro and small 
enterprises short-
ened to 10 days

• Pilot programs of 
adopting notifi-
cation and com-
mitment-based 
approval for 10kv 
power users

Real Estate
Registration

• Only one procedure 
needed for commer-
cial real estate trans-
fer and registration

• Use of address to 
inquire the physical 
status, seizure and 
mortgage situation, 
cadastral map and 
owner details of a 
registered real estate

Contract Execution

• Establishment of 
new-generat ion 
infrastructure for 
courts in Shanghai

• Implementation of 
online case filing

• Promotion of the 
e-delivery system 
and national court 
price inquiry and val-
uation mechanism
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First-class Business Environment

Mobile Application “Suishenban”

Thanks to thriving emerging industries such as big data, IoT and cloud computing, Shanghai’s Single Platform for Urban Management 
has enabled structural innovation to be made in urban governance. By creating this unified database platform, a new wave of 
innovation and development in current urban governance has been created. Use of the system allows transparency of social issues 
and public needs, and has greatly raised government efficiency. By 2025, Shanghai’s ability to deal with serious epidemics and public 
health emergencies will be world-class, making the city one of the safest in terms of public health across the globe.

Government Online-Offline Shanghai Portal Breaks down Data Barriers

Single Platform for Urban Management Empowers the “Intelligent System” of Shanghai

http://zwdt.sh.gov.cn/govPortals/index.do

As the super mobile application of Government Online-Offline 
Shanghai Portal, “Suishenban” has 21.86 million individual real 
name users and is connected to 1,541 government services 
offered by more than 50 municipal departments and 16 
districts. These services include those related to education, 
public security, civil affairs, human resources, social security, 
healthcare and medical insurance.

The Government Online-Offline Shanghai Portal has reduced 
total service time needed by 59.8%, lowered the number of 
materials required for administrative procedures by 52.9% 
and achieved an applause rate of 99.7%. It has substantially 
improved the satisfaction of individuals and enterprises.

Government Online-Offline Shanghai Portal

 ¡ Application for the new version of social security cards
 ¡ Online appointment for COVID-19 vaccination
 ¡ “Heat map of scenic spots” supporting flexible travel
 ¡ Online application for the withdrawal of housing provident 
funds

 ¡ More than 100 types of frequently used electronic licenses 
such as ID cards, household registration certificates and 
driver’s licenses

 ¡ Inquiry, appointment and access to services related to 
pension, healthcare, life, culture and Party building

 ¡ Housing & construction, 
transportation, water, 
electricity, gas

 ¡ Joint duties, joint operations
 ¡ Map services
 ¡ Weather services
 ¡ Transportation support
 ¡ Emergency response

 ¡ Urban dynamics
 ¡ Environment
 ¡ Transportation
 ¡ Adequate supplies
 ¡ Infrastructure

Focusing on 5 Dimensions

Improving 6 Plug-ins

The architecture of “three-level platform, 
five-level application” has taken form

Adhering to safety-first policies, improving 
systems and regulations, and strengthening 
technical support

Putting into use five major application 
scenarios e.g., flood and typhoon prevention 
and large passenger flow

Companies

Subsidies

Business 
licenses

Tax-related 
mattersIndividualsResidence 

permits Vehicles

Medical 
qualifications

Housing

With COVID-19 raging across the world, Shanghai has still successively delivered a number of policies to attract foreign investment and 
support enterprises, creating a stable, transparent, predictable and fair market environment. Under the new situation, Shanghai will 
continue to take the lead in China’s high-level opening-up, and welcome overseas investors with an open and inclusive policy environment.

Foreign investment is an 
indispensable part in ad-
vancing an open economy 
in Shanghai. Implementing 
the latest national negative 
lists for foreign investment 
is necessary for Shanghai 
to benchmark against the 
global standard and achieve 
further opening-up.

1
Implementing the Negative 
Lists for Foreign Investment Negative Lists for Foreign Investment

At the end of June 2020, in order to realize high-level opening-up of larger scope and 
wider range, the National Development and Reform Commission (NDRC) and the 

Ministry of Commerce of China (MOFCOM) released the Special Administrative Measures 
(Negative List) for Foreign Investment Access (2020 Edition) and the Special Administrative 
Measures (Negative List) for Foreign Investment Access in Pilot Free Trade Zones (2020 Edition).
• The opening-up of key service industries is further expanded, and the restrictions of 

access to the manufacturing and agriculture industries are eased
• The regulations prohibiting foreign investment in traditional Chinese medicine 

decoction pieces are removed
• Academic vocational education institutions are now allowed to be foreign-owned

GOVERNMENT ONLINE-
OFFLINE SHANGHAI

Employ-
ment

Supporting Policies for Investment

Regulations of Shanghai Municipality on Encouraging the Establishment and Development of Foreign-funded Research and 
Development Centers (2020–2025)

 ¡ Further support for the establishment and clustering of 
foreign-funded R&D centers

 ¡ Further support for the functioning of foreign-funded open 
innovation platforms

 ¡ Further support for foreign-funded R&D centers to be 
upgraded into global R&D centers

 ¡ Further support for the development of foreign-funded 
R&D centers

4

 ¡ Offering New Support Measures: Concentrating on increasing support for investment promotion activities, foreign investment 
projects, investment platforms, talent, etc., and establishing an incentive mechanism for inviting foreign investment

 ¡ Delivering Detailed Measures: Refining measures such as reducing the cost of using cross-border funds, increasing the convenience 
of working in China, and streamlining the approval procedures for the planning and land use of foreign-funded projects

 ¡ Implementing Relevant Negative Lists: Fulfilling the Special Administrative Measures (Negative List) for Foreign Investment Access 
(2020 Edition) and the Special Administrative Measures (Negative List) for Foreign Investment Access in Pilot Free Trade Zones (2020 
Edition) to accelerate the opening-up of finance, new energy vehicles and other industries

 ¡ Emphasizing Institutions: Directing efforts to matters that are of greatest concern to foreign investors, such as intellectual property 
protection, equal participation in standard setting and government procurement, and standardization of government supervision

Shanghai’s Implementation of the Opinions of the State Council on Further Improving the Utilization of Foreign Investment

3

 ¡ Pioneering China’s high-level opening-up on all fronts, and promoting the transition of opening-up based on the flow of 
goods and production factors to one that is based on rules

 ¡ Encouraging foreign investors to set up holding companies in Shanghai and supporting those companies to carry out 
investment activities in accordance with the law

 ¡ Establishing and improving the service system for major foreign investment projects; and facilitating the implementation of eligible 
major foreign investment projects by providing green-channels and one-stop services to tackle issues such as market access, 
planning, land use, environmental protection, energy use, construction and foreign exchange

Shanghai Regulations on 
Foreign Investment

Coming into effect on November 1, 2020, as the first regulations on foreign investment issued by a local 
people’s congress after enforcement of the Foreign Investment Law of the People’s Republic of China.

2

“Shanghai’s 28 Policy Measures” Navigate Enterprises Through the Pandemic

 ¡ To support enterprises to fight against 
the pandemic

 ¡ To increase the financial support for 
companies in need

 ¡ To facilitate orderly resumption of work 
and production

 ¡ To effectively reduce the burdens      
oncompanies of different types

 ¡ To help companies avoid large-scale 
laying off

 ¡ To improve the business environment 
with better services

5 In order to ease the economic burden on enterprises and help them get through the COVID-19 pandemic, Shanghai issued the 
Policy Measures of Shanghai Municipal People’s Government on Effective Prevention and Control of the Epidemic as well as Support for 
the Steady and Healthy Operation of Enterprises (“Shanghai’s 28 Policy Measures”).
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Foreign Investment Promotion Services

In order to enhance confidence in foreign investors for long-term investment, Shanghai has proactively improved its investment 
service system by setting up a foreign investment promotion service system consisting of government departments, professional 
agencies, chambers of commerce and associations, and enterprises. It aims to provide all-round and accurate investment 
promotion services for foreign investors and foreign-invested companies.

Platforms

Activities

Partners

 ¡ Creating the Shanghai Foreign Investment Promotion Service Platform
 ¡ Completing the project database, resource database and activity database for foreign investment promotion
 ¡ Offering online and offline services such as easy policy information look-up and the matching of projects to 

foreign investment

 ¡ Ceremonies for the issuing of certificates to RHQs and R&D centers of MNCs
 ¡ Hundreds of various investment promotion activities within and outside of China
 ¡ Shanghai City Promotion Convention held in 2 consecutive years

 ¡ Hiring talent from professional consulting agencies as well as European, American and Japanese chambers of 
commerce and associations to serve as international investment “promotion ambassadors”

 ¡ Cooperating with all districts and key functional areas to appoint investment promotion “service ambassadors” 
and build a professional and international investment promotion team

Shanghai Municipal Commission of Commerce, as a component of the Shanghai Municipal People’s Government, 
is responsible for Shanghai’s foreign trade, foreign investment, foreign economic cooperation, domestic trade and 
circulation management, and economic trade and foreign affairs services. It is also in charge of the preliminary 
examination and approval of new port opening, further port opening, temporary port opening and temporary access 
to non-open areas.

Major Responsibilities Concerning Foreign Investment

Shanghai Municipal Commission of Commerce

 ¡ Providing policy advice
 ¡ Assisting to arrange meetings between senior 

leaders of foreign entities and Shanghai government 
officials

 ¡ Administrating and serving foreign-funded companies

 ¡ Coordinating the work of relevant government 
departments and project implementation

 ¡ Handling complaints of foreign-invested enterprises

Government 
Departments

Led by the Government

Foreign Investment 
Promotion Service 

System

Shanghai Foreign Investment Development Board (Shanghai Overseas Investment 
Development Board, hereinafter referred to as “INVEST SHANGHAI”) was founded 
in December 1999 by the Shanghai Municipal People’s Government as the only 
municipality level professional two-way investment promotion agency in Shanghai 
under the Shanghai Municipal Commission of Commerce. INVEST SHANGHAI 
is headquartered in Shanghai, with a global network of overseas representative 
offices in Los Angeles, Osaka, London, Frankfurt, Gothenburg, Singapore, New Delhi, 
Bangkok and Dubai. In close collaboration with investment promotion departments 
in each district and development zone in Shanghai as well as overseas investment 
promotion agencies, INVEST SHANGHAI is dedicated to providing domestic and 
overseas investors with comprehensive and professional services ranging from 
investment policy and law advice to consultation, match-making and site selection, to 
assist them to make the best investment decisions locally and globally.

Major Responsibilities

Advantages

To promote the investment environ-
ment of Shanghai, organize various 
promotion events and to progress the 
set-up of foreign investment projects

To cultivate the main players of overseas 
investment and to assist Shanghai com-
panies in developing overseas market

To assist in solving problems encoun-
tered during project investment and 
to promptly provide feedback on the 
implementation of policies to deci-
sion-makers

To guide Shanghai’s districts and 
development zones in attracting in-
vestment to Shanghai and to organize 
overseas trips to hold investment pro-
motion events abroad

To provide follow-up services and to 
assist in solving problems encountered 
during project operation

To establish overseas representative 
offices, collect information on overseas 
industrial development, and provide 
customized services for potential 
investors

Close contact with domestic and foreign government departments, 
agencies and enterprises

Unique information channels that provide you with all project information you need

Agencies located in many cities across the globe

Professional and efficient employees fluent in multiple languages

Regarding service quality the soul of INVEST SHANGHAI

Chambers of Commerce

Associations

Enterprises

Professional Agencies

Shanghai Foreign Investment Development Board

Address: F15, 83 Loushanguan Road, Shanghai
Website: www.investsh.org.cn
Email: investshanghai@investsh.org.cn
Tel: 86-21-62368800

Foreign Investment Promotion System

Joint Participation of
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The Shanghai Investment Promotion Partnership (SIPP) is a city-wide investment promotion exchange mechanism led by Shanghai Foreign 
Investment Development Board, together with 15 investment promotion agencies in Shanghai and composed of 107 Chinese and foreign 
investment promotion institutions. About 75% of SIPP members come from over 30 countries and regions outside of China.
SIPP, a platform for cooperation, exchange, service and win-win collaboration, is committed to strengthening the cooperation between 
domestic and foreign investment promotion organizations in Shanghai. It is focused on the needs, problems and projects of businesses 
and on effectively integrating resources. It aims to promote investment cooperation, information exchange, and corporate services and to 
promote the city itself, while facilitating and upgrading two-way investment promotion of Shanghai.

Initiated in collaboration with 15 
investment promotion agencies

SIPP members include 107 
Chinese and foreign investment 

promotion institutions

75% of SIPP members 
come from abroad

SIPP members are from 30 
countries and regions

Part of Chinese and Foreign Members of SIPP

• American Chamber of Commerce in 
Shanghai

• Canadian Chamber of Commerce in 
Shanghai

• Australian Trade and Investment 
Commission

• Commercial Office of New Zealand 
Consulate

• JETRO SHANGHAI
• Enterprise Singapore
• Thai Chamber of Commerce in China 

• European Union Chamber of 
Commerce in China

• Delegation of German Industry & 
Commerce·Shanghai

• Department for International Trade
• IDA Ireland
• French Chamber of Commerce and 

Industry in China
• Netherlands Foreign Investment 

Agency (NFIA) China
• AICEP Portugal Global

• Swiss Center Shanghai
• Polish Investment and Trade Agency 

China Representative Office in 
Shanghai 

• Shanghai Branch of the Trade Mission 
of the Russian Federation in China

• Invest in Sweden Agency
• Innovation Norway China
• Brazil-China Chamber of Commerce & 

Industry

Shanghai Investment Promotion Partnership (SIPP)

Singapore Office, Singapore
Tel: 0065-9326-2598 

E-mail: jinaiping@sucgi.net

Gothenburg Office, Sweden
Tel: 0046-31-158688

Fax: 0046-31-158788

E-mail: gothenburg@investsh.org.cn

Headquarters
Tel: 86-21-62368800
Website: www.investsh.org.cn
E-mail: investshanghai@investsh.org.cn
Address: F15, New Town Mansion, 83 Loushanguan Road, 
Shanghai, China

Los Angeles Representative Office, USA
Tel: 001-213-625-1890 

Fax: 001-213-625-1935

E-mail: la@investsh.org.cn

Tel:

United Arab Emirates Office, U.A.E.
Tel: 00971-5-27965868

E-mail: zhuyt@shanghai-electric.com

Frankfurt Office, Germany
Tel: 0049-69-30855017

Fax: 0049-69-30855163

E-mail: frankfurt@investsh.org.cn

Bangkok Office, Thailand
Tel: 0066-2-274-1676

E-mail: zhuchao@shhuayi.com

London Office, UK
Tel: 0044-20-76268088

Fax: 0044-20-78682002 

E-mail: london@investsh.org.cn

New Delhi Office, India
Tel: 0091-8130891221

E-mail: shenchengming@sucgi.net

Osaka Office, Japan
Tel: 0081-6-6569-1520

Fax: 0081-6-6569-1521 

E-mail: osaka@investsh.org.cn

China

Shanghai
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Pudong New Area Commission of Commerce
Website: www.english.pudong.gov.cn
Tel: 86-21-68546514
Address: 2 Hehuan Road

Huangpu District Commission of Commerce
Website: www.english.huangpuqu.sh.cn
Tel: 86-21-33134800 transferred to the 
Commission of Commerce
Address: 300 East Yan'an Road
Huangpu District Financial Service Office
Tel: 86-21-33134800
Address: F6, West of Building 1, 300 East Yan'an 
Road

Jing'an District Commission of Commerce
Website: www.english.jingan.gov.cn
Tel: 86-21-64178239
Address: 915 Julu Road
Jing'an District Investment Promotion Office
Tel: 86-21-33372300
Address: 915 Julu Road

Xuhui District Commission of Commerce
Website: www.xuhui.gov.cn
Tel: 86-21-64872222
Address: Room 512, 336 North Caoxi Road
Xuhui District Business Service Center
Tel: 86-21-64872222 transferred to 3564
Address: F8, Building 1, 336 North Caoxi Road

Changning District Commission of Commerce
Website: www.english.shcn.gov.cn
Tel: 86-21-22050817, 86-21-22050867
Address: F8, 599 Changning Road
Changning District Investment Promotion 
Office
Changning District Investment Service Center
Tel: 86-21-62118851
Address: F7, 555 Loushanguan Road

Putuo District Commission of Commerce
Website: www.english.shpt.gov.cn
Tel: 86-21-52564588-7081
Address: F10, Building 2, 1321 Tongchuan Road
Putuo District Investment Promotion Office
Tel: 86-21-52820889, 86-21-52820851
Address: F5, 602 Tongpu Road

Hongkou District Commission of Commerce
Website: www.shhk.gov.cn/shhk/English
Tel: 86-21-25658335
Address: Room 1305, 518 Feihong Road
Hongkou District Investment Promotion Office
Tel: 86-21-65953818
Address: F23, 908 Dongdaming Road

Yangpu District Commission of Commerce
Website: www.english.shyp.gov.cn
Tel: 86-21-65630687
Address: F20–21, Building 2, 800 Huimin Road
Yangpu District Investment Promotion Office
Tel: 86-21-55805537, 86-21-55805295
Address: 690 Longchang Road

Minhang District Commission of Economy
Website: www.english.shmh.gov.cn
Tel: 86-21-64122886
Address: F3, 6558 Humin Road
Minhang District Investment Promotion 
Center
Tel: 86-21-54438001
Address: F5, Building 1, 4855 Dushi Road

Jiading District Commission of Economy
Website: www.english.jiading.gov.cn
Tel: 86-21-69989726
Address: 111 South Bole Road
Jiading District Investment Promotion Center
Tel: 86-21-59991069
Address: F2, 1055 Pingcheng Road

Baoshan District Commission of Commerce
Website: www.shbsq.gov.cn/shbs/en
Tel: 86-21-56178991, 86-21-56176506
Address: 245 Taihe Road

Jinshan District Commission of Economy
Website: www.en.jinshan.gov.cn
Tel: 86-21-57921161
Address: Room 1349, 2000 Jianshan Avenue
Jinshan District Investment Promotion Office
Tel: 86-21-57922627
Address: F15, 555 Longshan Road

Songjiang District Commission of Economy
Website: www.english.songjiang.gov.cn
Tel: 86-21-37722775
Address: 681, Lane 900, North Sanxin Road
Songjiang District Investment Promotion 
Service Center
Tel: 86-21-37735285, 86-21-37739361
Address: 1 Yuanzhong Road

Qingpu District Commission of Commerce
Qingpu District Investment Promotion Office
Website: www.shqp.gov.cn/english/
Tel: 86-21-39711266
Address: 100 Gongyuan Road

Fengxian District Commission of Economy
Website: www.english.fengxian.gov.cn
Tel: 86-21-57419432
Address: 1 Nanting Road, Nanqiao Town
Fengxian District Investment Promotion Office
Tel: 86-21-67137517
Address: F9, SME Union Building, 1529 South 
Wangyuan Road

Chongming District Commission of Economy
Website: www.english.shcn.gov.cn
Tel: 86-21-59623588
Address: F5, Building 2, Business Center, 8188 
Chongming Avenue, Chengqiao Town
Chongming District Eco-Industry Promotion Office
Tel: 86-21-59620053
Address: F7, Building 2, Business Center, 8188 
Chongming Avenue, Chengqiao Town

Judicial Guarantees to Protect Rights and Interests

Guarantees for Communications Between the Government and Enterprises

Shanghai is dedicated to establishing multiple communication channels and multi-dimensional investment service systems. These 
channels and systems are designed to promptly notify enterprises of governmental changes and help them correctly understand 
the latest policies, strengthen the ties between the government and foreign-invested enterprises, provide effective protection for 
foreign investment, and further promote foreign investment through all directions, development stages and channels.

Shanghai Foreign Investment Association is a non-profit social organization composed of foreign-invested enterprises 
in Shanghai and institutions, groups and professionals that are engaged in foreign-invested services. It is committed to 
enhancing exchanges and cooperation between companies and the government and other institutions, among enterprises, 

as well as between companies and the public. It is also dedicated to conveying members’ policy propositions, safeguarding 
members’ legitimate rights and interests, and encouraging foreign-invested enterprises to fulfill 
their social responsibilities, with a view to fostering their sustainable development in Shanghai.
The 16 district governments in Shanghai, the Lin-gang New Area Administrative Committee and the 
Hongqiao Central Business District Administrative Committee have designated specific departments 
or institutions as complaint centers responsible for accepting and addressing complaints from 
foreign-invested enterprises within their respective jurisdictions.

Shanghai Foreign Investment Association

 ¡ Establishing a cross-regional and cross-departmental rapid collaborative protection mechanism 
for intellectual property rights

 ¡ Fully heeding the opinions and suggestions of foreign-invested enterprises and related chambers 
of commerce and associations when local laws, regulations and normative documents relevant 
to foreign investment are drafted 

 ¡ Improving diversified dispute resolution mechanisms and innovating operation mechanisms for 
international commercial trials

Contact Information of Government Agencies for 
Commerce and Investment Promotion in All Districts

Services and Protection for Foreign Investment

Round-table Mech-
anism for Govern-
ment-Enterprise 
Communication

Holding face-to-face 
meetings with repre-
sentatives from for-
eign-invested enter-
prises to interpret the 
latest policies, listen 
to enterprises’ diffi-
culties and sugges-
tions, and advance 
problem solving

Strengthened Protection 
for Rights and Interests of 

Foreign-invested 
Enterprises

Establishing and improving 
the municipal joint working 
mechanism for addressing 
complaints from foreign-in-
vested enterprises as well 
as complaint centers at 
the municipal and district 
levels, keeping online and 
offline application channels 
open, and standardizing 
the workflow of accept-
ance, handling and feed-
back

Interactions and 
Visits

Municipal leaders tak-
ing the lead in visiting 
and serving foreign-in-
vested enterprises, 
and officers from the 
Municipal Commission 
of Commerce, togeth-
er with those from the 
district authorities, vis-
iting all RHQs of MNCs 
to help them resolve 
actual difficulties

Dedicated Foreign-
Related Services

Providing services for 
foreign-invested enter-
prises through a ded-
icated service window 
in the Government 
Online-Offline Shang-
hai Portal to assist 
foreign-invested enter-
prises and foreigners 
working and living in 
Shanghai

Services for Major 
Projects

Setting up a mech-
anism for tracking 
major projects and 
a “manager” respon-
sibi l i ty system for 
foreign-invested pro-
jects, and creating a 
“green channel” for 
key projects to bol-
ster rapid construc-
tion, production and 
profitability of the 
launched projects
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Since January 1, 2020, the Foreign Investment Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Regulations for the Implementation of the 
Foreign Investment Law of the People’s Republic of China have been in effect. According to the Foreign Investment Law, China offers pre-
establishment national treatment plus a negative list management mechanism for foreign investment. “Pre-establishment national 
treatment” refers to the treatment given to foreign investors and investment in respect of market access at a level no less favorable than 
that given to domestic investors and investment. “Negative list” refers to China’s special administrative measures for access of foreign 
investment in specific areas, which means national treatment shall be granted to those that are not on the negative list.

Foreign Investment Law

Since January 1, 2020, relevant applicants, when establishing new foreign-invested enterprises, whether or not restricted by the “negative 
list”, do not need to apply for approval by the Shanghai Municipal Commission of Commerce. Instead, they can apply through the one-
stop service system for foreign affairs, and the market supervision department shall directly register the application in accordance with 
the access requirements. Applicants shall sign the commitment letter as required when applying for incorporation.

The Establishment of Foreign-invested Enterprises

Appendix

Approval 
Within One Day

Issuance 
Within the Same Day

Receipt

Official Seal

Business 
License

Business License 
Approval

Paper Business 
License 
Required

Single-window 
Issuance

Issuance of Electronic 
Business License
Social Insurance 
Registration for 

Employment

Si
ng

le
-f

or
m

 
Su

bm
is

si
on

One-time 
Submission

Appendix I: Procedures for the Establishment 
of Foreign-invested Enterprises
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Online-application-based Service Window for Entry-Exit Affairs
Eligible foreign talents are allowed to file their applications for work-type residence permits online at any time and collect 
permits at the service window instantly, with no need to submit passports in advance.

Single-window Service Platform for Border Crossing Permission
Thanks to the platform, the formalities for boarding or berthing alongside foreign vessels can be completed on mobile 
phones, with necessary digital passes generated. Information on persons planning to leave or enter China by business 
jets or air freighters can be filed online for permission as well.

Appendix II: Entry and Exit Services Appendix III: Utility Prices

Permit 
Issuance 

Procedures

Submission of 
application

Fee payment

Review and approval

Document production

Permit collection

Preliminary 
assessment 

at the service 
window

Submission of 
application and other 

required materials

Review by 
police officers 
at the service 

window

Approval by Exit-Entry 
Administration Bureau of 
Shanghai Public Security 

Bureau

Permit collection

Any rejected applicant will be 
informed of all the reason(s) 
for the decision in a single 
notice. 

Denial if the applicant cannot 
establish his/her eligibility 

Online application is available at the Government 
Online-Offline Shanghai Portal, one-stop service system 
for foreign affairs, as well as Suishenban (a government 
app) and its mini programs on WeChat and Alipay.

Entry and Exit Permits for 
Chinese Citizens

Residence Permits for 
Foreigners

Type of Users Annual 
Household Usage (m3) Price (RMB/m3)

Household

Tier-1 0-310  3.00

Tier-2 310-520 3.30

Tier-3 >520 4.20

Non-household (charged at the household price) 3.05

Type of Users Tier
Annual 

Household Usage 
(kW)

Price (RMB/kW)

Fixed Rate Time-of-Use Rate

Household

Tier-1 0-3,120 0.617
Peak 0.617

Off-peak 0.307

Tier-2 3,120-4,800 0.667
Peak 0.677

Off-peak 0.337

Tier-3 >4,800 0.917
Peak 0.977

Off-peak 0.487

Non-household 
(charged at the 

household price)

<1 kV 0.641 —

10 kV 0.636 —

Electricity

Type of Users Annual Household 
Usage (m3)

Water Price
(RMB/m3) 

Sewage Treatment 
Rate (RMB/m3)

Household

Tier-1 0-220 1.92 1.70

Tier-2 220-300 3.30 1.70

Tier-3 >300 4.30 1.70

Non-household (charged 
at the household price) 2.12 1.70

Notes: 1. The sewage treatment fee = water usage × sewage treatment rate × 0.9
2. If water supply and drainage services are provided by district-administered water utilities, please consult the local price administration or 

water authority for corresponding prices.

Water (water supply and drainage services provided by Shanghai municipal water utilities)

Natural Gas (supplied by Shanghai municipal gas utilities)
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Shanghai Foreign Investment Guide

White Paper on Environment for Foreign Investment in Shanghai

Scan the QR code to read the Shanghai Foreign Investment Guide and the White Paper on 
Environment for Foreign Investment in Shanghai in previous years.

Appendix IV: Previous Documents on Foreign 
Investment in Shanghai

The Shanghai Foreign Investment Guide is 
published annually by Shanghai Foreign 
Investment Development Board to pro-
vide comprehensive information on the 
advantageous investment environment 
and opportunities available to foreign in-
vestors in Shanghai, enable their informed 
decision-making regarding investment and 
operation in the city, and help them find 
investment areas that fit into their devel-
opment needs. Based on the information 
and data related to the economic and 
industry development of Shanghai, the 
annual Investment Guide aims to demon-
strate the overall investment environment 
and policies, highlighted investment areas 
and their spatial distribution in Shanghai 
as well as the city’s comprehensive invest-
ment services.
This Investment Guide is a joint project 
made possible with the strong support and 
great contribution from various govern-
ment departments in Shanghai, including 
Shanghai Municipal Commission of Com-
merce, Shanghai Municipal Development 
and Reform Commission, Shanghai Munic-
ipal Commission of Economy and Informa-
tization, and authorities of commerce and 

investment promotion in all districts. We 
are grateful for their admirable efforts to 
collect and provide information and data 
during the preparation of this Investment 
Guide.
Our special appreciation also extends to 
Deloitte China (“Deloitte”). Engaged by 
Shanghai Foreign Investment Develop-
ment Board, Deloitte has developed this 
brand new Investment Guide featuring a 
professional, objective and all-round anal-
ysis. Professionally improved in style and 
layout, the 2021 edition is more readable 
and visually attractive, better meeting the 
needs of foreign investors.
To benefit more investors with fact-based 
information on the foreign investment 
environment in Shanghai, this year’s In-
vestment Guide, available in both Chinese 
and English versions, provides an all-round 
overview of the investment environment 
in Shanghai with regards to highlighted 
investment areas, their spatial distribution 
and investment service institutions, in a 
bid to facilitate investors’ business opera-
tion in Shanghai. Comments and sugges-
tions will be greatly appreciated. 

Afterword



Shanghai Foreign Investment Development Board 
Shanghai Overseas Investment Development Board

Address: F15, New Town Center,  83 Loushanguan Road, Shanghai, P.R.C.  Post code: 200336
Tel: 86-21-62368800
Fax: 86-21-62368026
Website: www.investsh.org.cn
E-mail: investshanghai@investsh.org.cn


